1988

Jerry Joe Medina v. Gerald L. Cook, Warden, et al. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS OF THE CASE

Appellant was charged on 4-1-84 with Criminal Homicide in the Second Degree under 76-5-203 Utah Code Annotated 1953 as amended, in connection with 1984 in Salt Lake City, Utah.

Appellant was tried before a Jury and found guilty of Second Degree Homicide in the Third Judicial District Court and was sentenced to 5-years to Life at the Utah State Prison by the Honorable J. Dennis Fredricks, Presiding, and is currently serving that sentence.

Appellant submits that the cause or origin of the Homicide is still unclear, only that the charges of Criminal Homicide arose out of two neighboring apartment buildings where two different parties were underway, located at 320 West 800 North in Salt Lake City, Utah.

Appellant had gotten off work at approximately 10:00 p.m. this same evening, which Appellant worked just a half block up the street at the Union Pacific Railroad at the time as a Pressure Systems Specialist Mechanic on locomotives, which Appellant had been employed for the Union Pacific for approximately 11-years at the time of this occurrence (Tr. of Trial P.442).

Appellant Mr. Medina who has strongly maintained his innocence, testified at trial that he (Appellant) and his cousin Leonard Fernandez had left this party between the early morning hours of 3:30-4:00 a.m. being approximately 30-minutes before the homicide occurred at 4:20 a.m. (Tr. of Trial P.18, 119,189,459) which was corroborated by all witness's accounts who testified that could remember when the Appellant had left this party (Tr.of Trial P.119, 123,210) which even the alleged sole eyewitness Ricky Myers even corroborated by testifying that:

"When everybody started leaving the party between 3:30 - Jerry Medina also left, and I didn't see him anymore after that, I would have to say that much" (Tr. of Trial P.233).

Appellants claim that he had left approximately 30-minutes before the Homicide can further be corroborated by the fact that at the time of the homicide all six (6) eyewitness's who talked to police and identified the cars and people they seen leaving the scene never identified the Appellant or his car, which these identifications were consistant, accurate and identical (See Police - Reports No. 84025540 P. 1, 7, 10, 12, and Tr. of Trial P. 43, 51).

At the time of trial the States convicting evidence and testimony consisted of three (3) witness's and closing arguments being;

- (A) Detective John Johnson, the arresting officer.
 - (B) Ricky Myers, the alleged sole eyewitness.
 - (C) Eli Archuletta, a inmate at the Utah State Prison and
 - (D) Closing arguments by the Prosecutor that mis-stated the facts and evidence and were inflammatory and prejudicial and insinuated previous heinous murder crimes.
- (A) Appellant submits in the first instance, Detective Johnson testified at trial that:

He (Detective Johnson) physically conducted a search of the Appellants (Mr. Medina) car and found a .38 Calibur bullet and that the car he searched was a 1974 Black Chevrolet Monte Carlo (Tr. of Trial P. 321) and that he Appellants Monte Carlo was parked out in the street in the circle (Catherine Circle Street) with numerous other cars (Tr. of - Trial 325) and that there were a couple vehicles also parked in the driveway (Tr. of Trial P. 316) that he (Detective Johnson) did not need no key's to enter the car because it was unlocked and that there were no alcoholic beverage containers in the car, either full or empty (Tr. of Trial P.317, 319). [1]

Appellant Mr. Medina asserts that Detective John Johnson assumed upon his search that this Black 1974 Chevrolet Monte Carlo belonged to the Appellant Mr. Medina, where in fact the car belonged to a friend of the neighbors named Mark Velarde who would of testi-

fied so at the time of Trial (EXHIBIT 2) and in further support Appellant submits the foregoing for this Courts consideration:

- (1) That Mr. Medina's car was a 1972 Chevelle Malibu that has no resemblance in any way, shape, or form to a 1974 Monte Carlo and does not have the words "Chevrolet" or "Monte Carlo" anywhere on the car for identificational purposes (Tr. of Trial - P. 446).
- (2) Mr. Medina's car was half painted grey primer from doing repairs and auto-body work on the car resulting from an automobile accident in a snowstorm after hitting "black ice" a few months previously (Tr. of Trial P. 449).
- (3) Appellants car was parked in the driveway, not in the street, where Appellant "pulled up into the house" and "parked in front of the house" "in the driveway" and further Appellants car doors were "locked" (Tr. of Trial P. 129, 489, 461).
- (4) Further its undisputed that Appellants car the night of the homicide was littered with numerous beverage (alcohol) the evening and Appellant drinking in his car upon leaving a bar and the Najera party (Tr. of Trial P. 129, 445, 454).
- (5) Further there were only two cars owned in the Fernandez household and only room for both of these cars in the Fernandez driveway and both the Fernandez car and the Appellants car were in the driveway at the time of Appellants arrest, which Detective Johnson testified he seen both cars in the driveway (Tr. of Trial - 316) by testifying he seen more than one car in the driveway.

Appellant Mr. Medina asserts that he was not present at the time this car was searched, nor did he witness or made aware or participate, further Appellant (Mr. Medina) was totally unaware that a bullet had allegedly been found at this time, and was not made aware of this fact until after his (Appellant) arrest when he bailed out of Jail, wherein he was notified by Court appointed trial counsel Francis Palacios, where he (Mr Medina) had informed Counsel of these facts, and also that he didn't know how a .38 could of been found in his car, and seen the bullet for the first time at trial (Tr. of - Trial P. 487) (2) Thus Appellant alleges Counsels performance was deficient and prejudicial because trial counsel not only made

[1] By all officers accounts who accurately identified the vehicle by make, model and year further stated the car searched was a Black 1974 Chevrolet Monte Carlo.

- See Police Reports No. 840254 Page 10, 21, (EXHIBIT NO. 10) "one live round of .38 Special Ammunition was found on the passenger side floor board of a car that was a Black 1974 Chevrolet Monte Carlo"

- See also testimony of Detective Leary; "the car Detective Johnson searched was a Black Monte Carlo". (Tr. of Trial P. 357).

no attempt to investigate or explain or contradict this discrepancy involving two different car's resulting in the use of this .38 bullet, and also being the only evidence used against the Appellant, but then Counsel further stipulated to its admission (Tr. of Trial P. 495). Thus resulting a manifest injustice by having the Jury consider convicting false evidence it shouldn't have which relieved the State of having to prove its case beyond a reasonable doubt and deprived the Appellants defense the opportunity to challenge on cross examination, which Appellant also states he never heard this discrepancy during trial do to at the time Appellant was preoccupied with how the bullet could of possibly of been in his (Appellants) car in the first place, and feels both Trial and Appellate Counsel should of caught this error, which Appellant never really knew about this error until after Direct Appeal when Appellant obtained his copies of the Trial Transcripts and Police Reports.

(B) Witness Ricky Myers, alleged sole eye witness;

Appellant Mr. Medina alleges the testimony of this States witness and alleged sole adverse eye witness was perjured, tainted and inaccurate for good reason by Ricky Myers own admission and testimony, in that at the initial confrontation at the Preliminary Hearing

[2] The record clearly shows that Appellant was never present during the search of the vehicle in question being a 1974 Monte Carlo, and further the Appellants assertion he relayed all information to Counsel in not having knowledge of how the bullet got in his car and not being present is corroborated by Counsel's and Detective Leary's testimony,

- See: Detective Leary testimony that: "No" me (Detective Leary) and Jerry Medina were not present when Detective Johnson conducted the search of the vehicle nor did we participate, after I (Detective Leary) remained with Jerry (in the patrol car) while Detective Johnson conducted the search of the vehicle which was a Black Monte Carlo and I wasn't made aware that the .38 bullet was found until after Mr. Medina's arrest (Tr. of Trial P.354,357).
- See: Francis Palacios: Now Jerry "we" know you don't have any idea how that bullet got in your car, but how can you explain it? (Tr. of Trial P. 467)

Ricky Myers testified the foregoing;

That he Ricky Myers denied he seen the Appellant shoot the victim 17-times in a row when asked by Francis Palacios and finally told Court appointed Lawyer Francis Palacios "I'll say it was Jerry medina because you (Francis Palacios) pressured me to say it was Jerry Medina (Tr. of Pre-lim Trial P. 52) and that at the time of the homicide he (Ricky) was intoxicated and didn't know who was allegedly standing outside with Appellant because he didn't pay no attention and that the flash of the gun came from the direction of the Appellant Mr. Medina but he couldn't say it was Medina who fired the gun because his back was to Medina at the time, and he never had any conversations with Mr. Medina only a couple of passing statements (Tr. of Pre-lim Pages 50, 53, 58) but did see the revolver which was a large Magnum type revolver approximately 10 $\frac{1}{2}$ -inches in length and that it seemed to him (Ricky) at the time that the victim was acting childish in his eyes that evening (Tr. of Prelim P. 62, 64) and that the victim never talked, argued or fought with Appellant Mr. Medina and Appellant also brings to this Courts attention that when Ricky was arrested he never identified Mr. Medina as wearing the clothes Mr. Medina was wearing that evening nor did he identify Mr. Medina as being overweight or having a beard, and a gun shot residue test that was performed on Appellant was negative and there was not one drop of blood found on the Appellants clothes when examined by a microscope at the State Crime Lab.

Then this witness Ricky Myers admitted to meeting with the Prosecutor Michael Christiansen and discussing this Preliminary Testimony and matters and recieving additional facts and details about the case from this Prosecutor and Police shortly before trial (Tr. of Trial P. 267) where then after this contact with the Prosecutor shortly before trial and after discussing Ricky's testimony Ricky's testimony radically altered and took on a different characterization and was completely different in that then, Ricky Myers testified that:

Then he (Ricky Myers) was not any longer intoxicated at the time of the homicide and also after this talk with the Prosecutor he could also remember who was out side with the Appellant at the time of the homicide and his (Ricky's) back was no longer to the Appellant, and in fact could even remember seeing the Appellant shoot the victim and also could even remember not just the passing statements he had with the Appellant but after the talk with the Prosecutor could even remember having conversations. In fact he could even remember having a big conversation with the Appellant when he allegely shot the victim (Tr. of Trial P. 244, 245, 249) but could no longer remember the size of the large 10 $\frac{1}{2}$ -inch

revolver he seen the Appellant use just 6-months earlier (Tr. of Trial P. 252) which then this lapse of memory resulted in the Prosecutor stuffing on the Appellant in front of the Jury the smallest manufactured .38 revolver in the Continental United States being a 5-shot stainless steel Smith & Wesson "Flyweight Special" with a 1/2-inch barrel and overall length of 4½-inches being a little bit larger than a derringer and less than half as large as the revolver previously described by Ricky (Tr. of Trial P. 474, 476).

Appellant alleges Ricky Myers trial testimony was perjured from start to finish because Ricky testified at trial that:

He (Ricky) had been in the Army and had an Honorable Discharge from the Army and that at the time of the homicide he was gainfully employed with a firm in Omaha, Nebraska called "New Energy Consultants" (Tr. of Trial P. 231, 272). Further that he drove long haul semi trucks for a living and was a truck driver and in the process of starting his own trucking company and firm, insinuating he was worth the possible millions it would take to undergo such a financial undertaking and that he had only been to Utah once before as a child 20-years earlier (Tr. of Trial P. 218, 223) and had arrived at the party and place of the homicide at 12:30-Midnite and had never met the victim George Givens before the evening of the homicide (Tr. - of Trial P. 231, 221) and that he Ricky Myers had never been convicted or arrested of any crimes or felonies, and that when he seen the Appellant Mr. Medina shoot the victim that he (Ricky) ran and walked to the Greyhound Bus Depot and waited 4 or 5 minutes then called the Police (Tr. of Trial P. 339,257)

But Appellant submits all to the contrary he has learned through investigation and informed sources that:

That it was showed at trial that Ricky was never in the Army and that no such place of employment existed called "New Energy Consultants" in Omaha, Nebraska (Tr. of Trial P. 424, 494). Further Appellant ran a check on Ricky Myers drivers license D.L. E0002253 and Ricky could not of been a truck driver because his license had been revoked for a long time for D.U.I. further Ricky couldn't have been in the process of starting his own trucking company because he was a transient, further Ricky did not arrive to this party at almost 1:00 a.m., in the morning because by all witness's accounts he had been at this party drinking since 9:00 p.m., (Police Reports P. 10, See; Tr. of Trial P. 64, 69, 107, 183, 444) a witness named Mrs. Schuurman after trial by Assistant District Attorney Bernard Tanner and Mr. Wendell Coombs of the F.B.I. (EXHIBITS 3, 4, 5) that Ricky Myers in fact knew the victim previously and in fact was "fall" partners in crime with the victim and had been arrested with the victim in up to seven states including in Utah and that both had extensive criminal records and further Mr. Tanner stated that everyone from the District Attorney's Office to the Jail knew both Ricky and the victim, George Givens and also Ricky's testimony that he

seen Mr. Medina shoot the victim where he Ricky then ran to the Greyhound Bus Depot and waited 4 or 5 minutes then called the Police is also false because the Appellant never shot the victim and because the walking distance to the Greyhound Bus Depot was approximately 29-minutes, and the homicide occurred at 4:20 a.m., but Ricky had not called the Police till 6:08 a.m., leaving a 1-hour and 20 minutes unaccounted for by Ricky (Tr. of Trial P. 429, 18, 340). Which was even more pronounced and incriminating on Ricky's part because at the time of his arrest he stated to Police that he was only calling them (Police) because his truck was parked at the scene of the homicide and was registered in his name and he didn't feel like digging a deeper hole for himself and he also, had negative feelings about calling the Police and that he saw the Police arrive, who had arrived in less than a minute after the homicide, but didn't want to talk to them and ran away from the area on foot (Tr. of Trial P. 296-298 339, 18).

which was indicative of guilt on Ricky Myers part and alleged and used a defense by Trial Counsel and should have been investigated as such by Counsel before proceeding to Trial.

(C) The only other person to implicate the Petitioner was a witness by the name of Eli Archuletta whose testimony came about after the defense rested (Tr. of Trial P. 496) when Counsel was made aware of the Prosecutors intention of calling Eli as a witness, Appellant claims that the handling of the evidence and known facts concerning this witness Eli, that Counsel's performance was again prejudicial in not comprehending the importance of investigating a witness's testimony in a murder trial when all facts known to Counsel show that this witness's testimony was inaccurate, self serving, motivated and uncorroborated, and warranted inquiry for the foregoing facts and circumstances alleged to be the basis of Appellants claims at this stage:

- (1) When Counsel was made aware of Eli's testimony and that a confession and incriminating testimony by the Appellant, Counsel stated that "she had not been aware of Eli or his testimony and was put in a bad posture, and therefore; requested she be given an opportunity to talk to Eli about his testimony and to talk to Appellant and have an opportunity to call a witness in rebuttal to Eli Archuletta or she (Counsel) would be an ineffective assistant, (Tr. of Trial P. 497) where the Judge agreed and stated

that he thought it would only be appropriate "In the light of the fact Eli has recently appeared" and therefore; recessed, and put no time limit in affording Counsel this opportunity and stated "we will recess and I'll just check with you later about when we will reconvene" (Tr. of Trial P. 498)

- (2) After recess Counsel talked to Eli (10-min.) and told by Eli that Appellant had met him (Eli) in the Annex Bar several months before the homicide resulting (3) in Eli later selling Appellant a .38 revolver, in which 1-month after the homicide Mr. Medina was alleged to of met Eli again in the Annex Bar and essentially confessed saying, "I didn't use any gun you sold me I used a .32" and that he (Appellant) shot the victim because "they were arguing" in which the alleged incidents from the initial meeting to the confession had occurred within the past year, prior to trial (Tr. of Trial P.508).
 - (3) After spending approximately 10-minutes talking to Eli, Counsel then discussed Eli's testimony with Appellant (for about 10-min.) where Counsel was made aware of Eli trying to shoot Appellants cousin Leonard several months* before Trial, which resulted in a confrontation with Appellant Mr. Medina at a local auto parts store also; before Trial, Counsel was also told that Eli's testimony was fabricated and a vendetta because Eli had made threats to get even with Appellant and his cousins and brother Charlie. Also; before trial (Tr. of Trial P. 515,521) in which Appellant further pointed out Eli's Rap Sheet (4) And deal which were also indicative of the motivation against the Appellant, which could also be corroborated further by the fact Eli's testimony lacked factual knowledge because Eli was going to testify Appellant confessed by saying he was "arguing with the victim" when it was undisputed by all at Trial Appellant had never argued with the Appellant, which Counsel never told the Appellant at this time the alleged confessions and meetings surrounding Eli had occurred allegedly at the Annex Bar, only that they were alleged to have happened, which Appellant had told Counsel to please object to the use of Eli's uncorroborated, false testimony.
-
- (3) In Trial about (25) minutes after talking to Counsel Eli erroneously testified that Appellant Mr. Medina had made the confession prior to December 1983 being 4-months before the homicide had occurred (Tr. of Trial P. 500,503) And could not remember if he had sold Appellant the alleged firearm 4 or 5 months before or after the homicide, until the State used a "Time Continuum" being a blackboard with the date January 1984 to lead Eli to say "before the - homicide" over a sustained objection for leading (Tr. of P. 508). Nor could Eli remember where he got the alleged firearm he allegedly sold the Appellant, Mr. Medina and that no one knew about this transaction and for the fact the first time he (Eli) had ever mentioned it or talked about it to anyone was here at Trial.

Wherefore Appellant alleges Counsel's performance was prejudicially deficient in allowing Eli's unfounded and inaccurate testimony by Trial Counsel's own admission in that Trial Counsel requested a recess to find a witness in rebuttal to Eli or she would be an "Ineffective Assistant", and Counsel did not call the Annex Bar to check Eli's story for rebuttal witness's and if Counsel had tried she would of called the Annex Bar (as Appellant did) and found out by the owner Joe Giron and Bartenders that Eli was lieing and would have testified so (EXHIBIT 9) but instead Counsel simply talked to Eli and Appellant for 25-minutes (Tr. of Trial P. 500) and rushed back to Trial, which really galls Appellants sense of fairness in light of witness Eli, now openly brags about having lied and gotten Appellant convicted of the very reasons alleged by Appellant (See Exhibit 12) here at the Utah State Prison.

Appellant asserts another alleged instance of prejudice was the Prosecutors use of/and Counsel's failure to object, record, and preserve for Appeal, prejudicial closing arguments dealing in matters not in fact or record that were racially inflammatory and insinuated previous murder crimes and also in which the Jury was not admonished or requested to be so by Counsel, which called to the attention of the Jury remarks they were not justified in considering, for instance when the Prosecutor stated: (EXHIBIT 6)

[4] At the time of Trial Eli was testfying pursuant to an agreement with District Attorney Ted Cannon and Deputy District Attorney Michael Christensen that he would not be prosecuted for dealing in stolen firearms and property and Felony Burglaries and all pending charges would be dropped thus Eli would not be sent back to prison for violating his parole in which at this time Eli had further served time at the Colorado State Prison and had an extensive criminal record since he was a juvenile and presently back in prison for numerous other Felony Burglary and thefts.

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