1988

# Jerry Joe Medina v. Gerald L. Cook, Warden, et al. : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

Petitioner has taken a direct appeal from his conviction and does not now raise any issues which were not or could not have been raised in that appeal.

Petitioner's claim of a violation of his constitutional rights is not supported by the record of either his trial or his habeas hearing.

#### ARGUMENT

##### POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY RULED THAT PETITIONER COULD AND SHOULD HAVE RAISED ALL ISSUES CONCERNING HIS CONVICTION ON HIS INITIAL DIRECT APPEAL.

Petitioner asserts that the District Court erred in dismissing his habeas corpus petition. This assertion is meritless.

It is well settled law in Utah that if alleged errors could have been raised on direct appeal, this Court is "precluded under basic principles of appellate review from addressing them now." Bundy v. Deland, 763 P.2d 803, 804 (Utah 1988). In stating a post-conviction claim, a petitioner must allege an "obvious injustice or a substantial and prejudicial denial of a constitutional right in the trial of a matter;. . ." Id.

This Court in Codianna v. Morris, 660 P.2d 1101 (Utah 1983), clearly emphasized the standard for habeas corpus review:

It is therefore well settled in this state that allegations of error that could have been but were not raised on appeal from a criminal conviction cannot be raised by habeas corpus or postconviction review, except in unusual circumstances.

A much-quoted statement of the type of errors that are and are not cognizable by habeas corpus is the following from this Court's unanimous opinion in Brown v. Turner, 21 Utah 2d 96, 98-99, 40 P.2d 968, 969 (1968) (Crockett, C.J.):

[Habeas corpus] is an extraordinary remedy which is properly invocable only when the court had no jurisdiction over the person or the offense, or where the requirements of law have been so disregarded that the party is substantially and effectively denied due process of law, or where some such fact is shown that it would be unconscionable not to re-examine the conviction. If the contention of error is something which is known or should be known to the party at the time the judgment was entered, it must be reviewed in the manner and within the time permitted by regular prescribed procedure, or the judgment becomes final and is not subject to further attack, except in some such unusual circumstance as we have mentioned above. Were it otherwise, the regular rules of procedure governing appeals and the limitations of time specified therein would be rendered impotent.

Codianna v. Morris, 660 P.2d at 1104-05 (bracketed material and emphasis in original). The standard of review was further detailed by this Court in Bundy v. Deland, 763 P.2d 803, 805 (Utah 1988), as follows:

On appeal from denial of habeas corpus relief, "we survey the record in the light most favorable to the findings and judgment; and we will not reverse if there is a reasonable basis therein to support the trial court's refusal to be convinced that the writ should be granted."

Id. at 805, quoting Velasquez v. Pratt, 21 Utah 2d 229, 232, 443 P.2d 1020, 1022 (1968)(citations omitted). In Codianna, this Court rejected the argument that ineffective assistance of counsel necessarily constitutes "unusual circumstances" that would allow petitioner to bypass the regular appellate process in favor of habeas corpus. The Court stated:

To permit the inevitable instances of attorney oversight or ignorance to qualify for the "unusual circumstances" exception would allow that exception to swallow up the rule, thereby transforming habeas corpus from an extraordinary remedy into an alternative appeal mechanism in contravention of the finality of criminal judgments that is the settled policy of this state.

Codianna, 660 P.2d at 1105.

Likewise, in Zumbrunnen v. Turner, 27 Utah 2d 428, 497 P.2d 34 (1972), this Court stated:

He [Zumbrunnen] pursued this petition, after his time for appeal from the conviction had expired. He claimed . . . his counsel, who assisted him at his request, was incompetent. [This point] could have been urged on a regular appeal. This court repeatedly has said the writ cannot be used as a substitute for such appeal. . .

Id. at 35.

Similarly, in Matthew v. Cook, 754 P.2d 666 (Utah 1988), this Court said that "[plaintiff] did not show cause why he failed to follow the route of regular appellate procedure and that he suffered prejudice as a result of his default." Id. at 667.



In Bryant v. Turner, 19 Utah 2d 284, 431 P.2d 121 (1967), this Court addressed a similar issue. In Bryant, petitioner claimed "that because of this inability to communicate he was not and could not be represented effectively by counsel." Id. at 122. The District Court denied the petition and this Court affirmed. Id. at 122-23. In discussing the case this Court said:

This proceeding is an attempt to do that which should not be done nor countenanced in our procedure: to turn habeas corpus into an appellate review. This is not its purpose, and it is not so intended. The regular steps of criminal procedure provided for in our law give adequate protections of the rights of one accused of crime and safeguards against conviction of the innocent. They afford full opportunity to present and have determined any matters of defense, and to make objections to any error or impropriety that may affect his rights. Moreover, after judgment is entered, there is assured a right of appeal within the proper time to seek redress for any such error or transgression of those rights. When this procedure has been followed the judgment should normally be final. It should not be subjected to a continual merry-go-round of collateral attacks upon various and specious pretexts as some courts are prone to permit nowadays. In our opinion such an inconsiderate attitude toward final judgments regularly arrived at by courts of competent jurisdiction robs the law of the dignity and respect it is entitled to. It tends to degrade the whole process of law enforcement and the administration of justice and thus to undermine the good order of society it is purposed to maintain.

Id. at 122 (footnotes omitted).

In a case similar to the one at bar, this Court invoked the doctrine of waiver or procedural default in affirming the summary dismissal of a petition claiming ineffective counsel. In Hafen v. Morris, 632 P.2d 875 (Utah 1981), the defendant was

convicted and sentenced to prison. The defendant appealed and his conviction was affirmed. He then sought habeas review and claimed that his trial attorney "failed to honor his request to challenge a juror who appellant knew. [He] also claims that his trial attorney failed to raise that issue on appeal although appellant had so requested." Id. at 876. Naturally, in his post-conviction action he claimed "he was denied effective assistance of counsel. . . ." Id. The lower court

dismissed his petition on the ground that he had waived any right to raise the issue of the failure of his attorney to challenge the juror. The court determined that it would not grant an evidentiary hearing on that issue since it could have been raised at appellant's trial or on appeal. . . .

Id. The Supreme Court upheld the lower court and stated:

We explained further, in Brown v. Turner, 21 Utah 2d 96, 440 P.2d 968 (1968), that "If the contention of error is something which is known or should be known to the party at the time the judgment was entered, it must be reviewed in the manner and within the time permitted by regular prescribed procedure, or the judgment becomes final and is not subject to further attack, except in some such unusual circumstances as we have mentioned above. Were it otherwise, the regular rules of procedure governing appeals and the limitations of time specified therein would be rendered impotent."

Waiver was found in Schad v. Turner, supra, where the petitioner in a petition for habeas corpus attempted to raise as an issue that the District Attorney had exceeded the bounds of propriety in his cross-examination of the petitioner at the trial. We there observed that since that was an issue which could have been raised on the petitioner's former appeal of his case to this Court, we would not take cognizance of it on a later petition for habeas corpus.

If the appellant's counsel did in fact fail to honor his request to challenge the juror, the

appellant had the adequate opportunity at the trial to have made complaint to the court. Furthermore, following his conviction that issue could have been raised by him in this Court in his appeal which pended in this Court for many months. In view of his silence, the trial judge correctly ruled that he had waived any claim of error in this regard. There are not here any of the "unusual circumstances" referred to in Bryant v. Turner, supra.

Id. Thus, this Court held that Hafen had waived review of his ineffective assistance of counsel claim because he failed to raise the issue at trial or while his direct appeal was pending.

In the present case, petitioner has claimed a violation of his constitutional rights in that he alleges ineffective assistance of counsel, prosecutorial misconduct, denial of access to the courts and prejudice in his trial judge. An examination of these claims and allegations demonstrates that petitioner was not denied due process nor would it be unconscionable to not re-examine his conviction. Petitioner had different counsel at trial and then during his appeal. His appellate counsel raised four issues, one involving ineffective assistance of counsel for failing to object to the giving of an "Allen" jury instruction, two claiming that the trial court erred by giving the instruction and by allowing a witness' preliminary hearing testimony to be read into the record at trial, and one claiming that there was insufficient evidence to support the guilty verdict.

Petitioner's general claim on habeas that his trial counsel rendered ineffective assistance was raised on his direct appeal. The appellate brief in the original case explored the allegation that trial counsel and petitioner were at odds on the handling of his case. Petitioner presented an affidavit to this appellate

court listing the conflicts that he claims to have had with trial counsel. This Court stated in its decision on that appeal that petitioner's contentions were rejected for two reasons:

First, it is based almost entirely on self-serving affidavits that are not part of the record. For obvious reasons, we cannot accept after-the-fact claims that there was a conflict with counsel, unless the defendant has made his disagreement with counsel apparent on the record.

State v. Medina, 738 P.2d 1021, 1023 (Utah 1987). The second reason given for rejecting petitioner's claim was that trial counsel's decision to accept the "Allen" charge was trial strategy and within counsel's prerogative to decide. Id.

#### POINT II

THE HABEAS COURT WAS CORRECT IN FINDING THAT PETITIONER HAS FAILED TO DEMONSTRATE THAT HIS TRIAL COUNSEL PROVIDED INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE.

As in petitioner's appeal, on habeas review he asked the District Court, and asks this Court now to review matters which are not in the record of the trial or the habeas evidentiary hearing. At the evidentiary hearing in the District Court, he did not present testimony nor evidence but merely argued his position and made statements to the court about his habeas claims (Habeas R. 264). Subsequently he submitted to the habeas court several "Supplemental Traverses" and "Affidavits" which evidently were intended to replace his deficiency in not presenting evidence at the hearing (Habeas R. 267-284, 286-370). None of the "traverses" or "affidavits" carry the weight of evidence nor do they raise matters which were not or could not have been raised on petitioner's direct appeal.

Petitioner's specific claims of ineffectiveness raised in his habeas petition were that trial counsel failed to conduct an investigation which would have shown that 1) the officers searched a Monte Carlo instead of a Chevelle or Malibu, 2) Myers was not a credible witness because his claims that he had served in the military, that he was starting his own business, that he worked for a firm in Omaha, Nebraska called "New Energy Consultants", that he had only met the victim for the first time that day, that he had never been convicted of a felony, and that he had walked to the bus depot and waited five minutes before calling police were false, and 3) Archuleta was not a credible witness because he had a "vendetta" against petitioner's family.

The specific claim that trial counsel was deficient because she failed to conduct pretrial investigation is not supported by the trial record. The trial record shows that trial counsel called the Chief Investigator of the Salt Lake Legal Defenders Association as a witness to testify as to the time it would have taken Myers to walk from the scene of the shooting to the bus depot (Trial R. 589-595). His testimony directly challenged the credibility of the prosecution's eyewitness, Rickey Myers. Another investigator from the Salt Lake Legal Defenders Association, Gilbert Ramirez, testified as to efforts to locate Myers' employer and failing to find the business Myers had given as his employer (Trial R. 585). This also was a direct challenge to Myers' credibility. Trial counsel proffered, with the stipulation of the prosecution, the testimony of an agent of the Department of the Army to the effect that the Department had

searched and had not found any record of Myers having served in the Army (Trial R. 656). Obviously, pretrial investigation was done and trial counsel used the information gleaned from that investigation to challenge the credibility of Myers on cross-examination (Trial R. 432-34). Petitioner's claim that other investigation could or should have been done or that further investigation would have changed the outcome of the trial is not supported by the record.

As to petitioner's claims that Myers lied when he testified as to starting his own business, that he only met the victim for the first time that day, and that he had never been convicted of a felony, petitioner has not shown any of those statements to be false. There is no evidence to disprove Myers' claim that he was starting his own business and the trial record doesn't say (as petitioner claims) that the new business was a trucking company (Trial R. 379). Myers said only that he was in the process of starting his own business, then answered the prosecutor's question about what type of business he was typically in by saying "Trucking" (Trial R. 379). Petitioner seeks to challenge Myers' statement that he had only met the victim that day by citing to an affidavit by his wife, Ruth Medina, which is appended to his Brief but does not appear in the record of his habeas petition. That affidavit is without merit. Mrs. Medina allegedly quotes an Assistant Attorney General as saying that everyone knew that Myers and the victim had hung out together and that Myers had criminal records in Utah and elsewhere. There is no evidence to that effect from Bernard

Tanner, an Assistant Attorney General working in the Tax and Business Regulations Division. Mr. Tanner may have made those statements to Mrs. Medina but they are not proof that Myers was lying. There is no evidence that Mr. Tanner has personal knowledge of Myers' supposed criminal history and these statements fly in the face of the sworn testimony of Officer John Johnson who testified that a criminal history of Myers was obtained and showed that he had no convictions in Utah nor warrants from other states (Trial R. 496, 506, 508). There also was no evidence provided that Myers and the victim had known each other before March 31, 1984. Most of these issues were thoroughly explored and challenged by trial counsel at trial and were also raised by petitioner on his direct appeal and found to be without merit. There was no new evidence before the habeas court which supports petitioner's claim that Myers was lying under oath.

Petitioner's claim that trial counsel was ineffective because the officers allegedly searched the wrong car is also without merit. Trial counsel was not present when petitioner gave consent for the search of his car nor when the officers conducted the search. While there is no testimony as to how the officers decided which car belonged to petitioner, it is difficult to believe that petitioner did not have some input as to which car was his. It is absurd to believe that the officers merely picked out a car at random near petitioner's house and searched it without establishing petitioner's possessory interest. Something or someone must have directed them to the

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